
D R A F T

Planning Board Minutes 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FORT PIERCE CITY PLANNING BOARD HELD ON
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2026, IN FORT PIERCE CITY HALL, COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 100
NORTH US HIGHWAY 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA.
 

               
1. CALL TO ORDER
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 
3. ROLL CALL

Chair Kreisl entered the meeting at 2:05 PM.

Present: Justine Carter; Ryan Collins; Nichelle Clemons; Christopher Widing; Alexander
Edwards; Clayton Johnson; Anton Kreisl, Chairman 

Staff Present: Sara Hedges, City Attorney
Kev Freeman, Planning Director
Kerry Driver, Senior Planner
Alicia Rosenthal, Planning and Development Organizer

4. CONSIDERATION OF ABSENCES

All members were in attendance.
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 

a. Minutes from the January 12, 2026, meeting.   
 
  Motion was made by Christopher Widing, and seconded by Clayton Johnson to approve the

minutes from the January 12, 2026, meeting. 

  AYE: Christopher Widing, Alexander Edwards, Clayton Johnson, Justine Carter, Ryan
Collins, Nichelle Clemons 

Passed 



 
6. NEW BUSINESS
 

a. PZZAM2025-00001
Zoning Atlas Map Amendment
Italian Castle 
4560 S. 25th Street

Before the presentation, the city attorney stated Ryan Collins may have a conflict of interest. 
Mr. Collins stated he potentially may have a conflict of interest and, in abundance of caution,
he recused himself.

Ms. Driver gave an overview of the Zoning Atlas Map Amendment.  She stated the request is
to rezone the property’s zoning classification from the county’s zoning (AR-1) to the city’s
zoning (E-1).  Ms. Driver said the site area is approximately 20.06 acres. She said on August
19, 2024, the 20.06-acre property was annexed into the City and retained the County
zoning. 

Chair Kreisl asked if all the county zoning designations on the property would be rezoned to
E-1. He also asked if there were any Technical Review Committee issues with the current
build on the property.

Dennis Murphy, the applicant's representative, said a utility annexation agreement was
signed and at the time of annexation the zoning was not changed properly.  He explained that
the rezoning is part of the clean-up process. He said the bulk of the property is zoned AR-1,
which is roughly equivalent to E-1 zoning in the city.  

Ms. Clemons asked if there are future plans for development.

Mr. Murphy said it would not be a subdivision, and they are working out the specifics, which
will be brought forward at another meeting.  He noted there would be no additional density on
the property.

  

 
  Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Alexander Edwards to forward a

recommendation of approval to rezone the property’ from the county’s zoning to the city
zoning, (E-1), for 4560 S. 25th Street. 

  AYE: Christopher Widing, Alexander Edwards, Clayton Johnson, Justine Carter, Nichelle
Clemons, Chairman Anton Kreisl 

Other: Ryan Collins (ABSTAIN) 
Passed 

 
7. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no comments from the public.
 
8. DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Mr. Feeman explained in the past that the FPUA annexation agreements were approved with
expediency, since there was not much difference in the city area.  He said that property
owners can come back for a zoning ratification if they want to develop the property, as long
as it does not create any non-conformities.

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950  • CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM • TEL: 772.467.3000 • FAX: 772.466.5808

Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - February 9, 2026
Page 2 



Mr. Freeman said the Evaluation and Appraisal report was submitted to the state.  He said
the City Commission accepted the recommendation from the Planning Board on the
annexations.  Mr. Freeman said the city is waiting for comments from the state, and he would
inform the Board if any amendments come through.

Mr. Freeman informed the Board of two applications coming to the next Technical Review
Committee meeting on February 19, 2026. He said the first application is for an Amazon One
Grocery, a 1.1 million square foot distribution center for natural foods. The second
application is for a 126 acre annexation on Gordy Road, west of I-95 and the Turnpike. Mr.
Freeman said the property is close to 10-mile creek and the recently approved Gordy Road
development.  He noted, at the same meeting, there will also be a Final Planned
Development for Gordy Creek. He said he expects a bit of discussion on the annexation
aligning with the city and the Commissioners' point of view. 

 
9. BOARD COMMENTS

There were no Board comments.
 
10. ADJOURNMENT
 

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950  • CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM • TEL: 772.467.3000 • FAX: 772.466.5808

Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - February 9, 2026
Page 3 



CITY OF FORT PIERCE
PLANNING BOARD

February 9, 2026

 Zoning Amendment
Italian Castle

 4560 S. 25th Street



APPLICANT
Dennis Murphy
(Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.)

PROPERTY OWNER(S)
Megan Mobley
(Italian Castle of the Treasure Coast, LLC)

PARCEL ID:
2433-333-0001-000-6

Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment

SUMMARY
Request to rezone the property’s zoning classification from the
county’s zoning (AR-1) to the city’s zoning (E-1)
SITE LOCATION/AREA = 20.06 +/- acres



BACKGROUND
On August 19, 2024, the 20.06-acre property was annexed into the City and retained
the County zoning:

• 3.53 acres…….(RF) County Religious Facility
• 3.47 acres……. (I) County Institutional
• 13.14 acres….. (AR-1) County Agricultural

Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment



Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment

ZONING: City/County

SLC

SLC

SLC

SLC SLC

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

S 25
th Street



Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment

ZONING: E1 Single-Family Estate Density Zone



Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment

PROPOSED ZONING: City

Proposed Zoning:

Land size: 20.06 acres
Land size: 873,814 sq. ft.



The proposed rezoning application meets the standards of the City’s Code Section 125-188.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff’s recommendation is for the Planning Board to move the proposed rezoning amendment
application for Approval to City Commission with the proposed Zoning designation.

ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Recommend Approval with conditions.

2. Recommend Disapproval.

Italian Castle - Zoning Amendment



CITY OF FORT PIERCE
PLANNING BOARD

February 9, 2026

Zoning Amendment
Italian Castle

4560 S. 25th Streett






	MinMeeting Presentation by Staff
	MinRyan Collins Recusal Form

